

Executive Office for United States Attorneys

United States Attorneys' Bulletin



Published by:

Executive Office for United States Attorneys, Washington, D.C. For the use of all U.S. Department of Justice Attorneys

Laurence S. McWhorter, Acting Director

Editor-in-Chief:

Jason P. Green

FTS 633-4024

Editor:

Judith C. Campbell

FTS 673-6348

Page

TABLE OF CONTENTS

COMMENDATIONS	81
POINTS TO REMEMBER	
Administrative Forfeiture of Real Property	82
Allegations Against Elected or Public Officials	83
Allegations of Misconduct Against Assistant United States Attorneys	84
Classified Information Procedures Act (CIPA)	84
Imposition of Restitution as Probation Condition Requires Loss Be Set Forth	
in Indictment or Stipulated in Plea Agreement	85
Indictments of Felons in Possession of Firearms	85
Need for Stricter Compliance with Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure	
32(C)(3)(D) At Sentencing	87
Personnel	87
Seized Cash	88
CASENOTES	
OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR GENERAL	89
OFFICE OF LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS	90
CIVIL DIVISION	92
LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION	96
FEDERAL RULES	96
APPENDIXAPPENDIX	98
UI PHATUADO	30

VOL. 35, NO. 5

THIRTY-FOURTH YEAR

MAY 15, 1987

Please send change of address to Editor, United States Attorneys' Bulletin, Room 1136, Universal Building North, 10th & Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20530.

COMMENDATIONS:

The following Assistant United States Attorneys have been commended:

ROBERT A. BEHLEN, JR. and ANN MARIE TRACEY (Ohio, Southern) by Regional Inspector General for Investigations Michael T. Dyer, Department of Health and Human Services, for their outstanding performance in the successful prosecution of a mail fraud and false claims case.

TENA CAMPBELL (Utah) by Ninth Circuit Court Judge J. Philip Eves, for her comments on jurisdiction of the federal courts during the Circuit Court Clerks' Academy.

DAVID J. DEBOLD and KAREN L. REYNOLDS (Michigan, Eastern) by Supervisory Special Agent Stefan C. Grelecki, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for their tireless efforts in the prosecution of a mail fraud case.

NATHAN DODELL (District of Columbia) by Assistant Director Joseph R. Davis, Legal Counsel Division, and Joel A. Carlson, Special Agent-in-Charge (Kentucky), Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his most competent assistance in defending a Freedom of Information Act case.

PATRICIA J. GORENCE (Wisconsin, Eastern) by Criminal Investigation Division Chief Elliott E. Lieb, Internal Revenue Service, for her successful prosecution of a difficult and complex IRS and Department of Labor case.

MARK V. JACKOWSKI (Florida, Middle) by Criminal Investigation Division Chief Maurice L. Dettmer, Internal Revenue Service, for his dedicated efforts in the successful prosecution of a money laundering case.

ROBERT M. KALEC (Michigan, Eastern) by Special Agent-in-Charge Richard J. Hoglund, United States Customs Service, for his fine work in a Great Lakes Task Force case involving an international marijuana smuggling matter that resulted in a continuing criminal enterprise.

ADAM KURLAND (California, Eastern) by Inspector General Paul A. Adams, Department of Housing and Urban Development, for his cooperation and assistance provided in the successful prosecution of a major fraud case.

ALEXANDRA LEAKE (Massachusetts) by Special Agent-in-Charge James F. Ahearn, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for her outstanding work in two perjury and conspiracy to obstruct justice cases.

STEPHEN J. LICCIONE and United States Attorney JOSEPH P. STADTMUELLER (Wisconsin, Eastern) by Criminal Investigation Division Chief Elliott E. Lieb, Internal Revenue Service, for their efforts in the successful prosecution of a major RICO and tax case.

DAVID H. MILLER (Indiana, Northern) by Director of Finance Bill Dvorak, MCI Telecommunications Corporation, for his diligent efforts in the successful prosecution of a wire fraud case.

DENNIS I. MOORE (Florida, Middle) by Colonel Charles T. Myers III, Corps of Engineers, Department of the Army, for his successful efforts in a tort claims case.

PAUL J. MORIARTY (Florida, Middle) and was presented a Certificate of Appreciation by Resident Agent-in-Charge Michael W. Hegerfeld, Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms (ATF), Department of Treasury, for his excellent work in prosecuting ATF cases.

JAMES E. MUELLER (Arizona) by (former) Director William P. Tyson, Executive Office for United States Attorneys, for his contribution to the Uniform Federal Debt Collection Act Project.

MARK ST. ANGELO (California, Eastern) by National Park Service Superintendent John H. Davis, Department of the Interior, for his fine presentation on the legal aspects of safety in the National Park Service during the Safety Officer Training Program.

JAMES L. SUTHERLAND (Oregon) by Criminal Investigation Division Chief David N. Blackorby, Internal Revenue Service, for his extraordinary efforts in the successful conclusion of a complex illegal tax shelter scheme.

MELVIN K. WASHINGTON (Wisconsin, Eastern) by Criminal Investigation Division Chief Elliott E. Lieb, Internal Revenue Service, for his outstanding efforts in the successful prosecution of a major tax and narcotics trafficking case.

WARREN A. ZIMMERMAN (Florida, Middle) by Inspector General Paul A. Adams, Department of Housing and Urban Development, for his prosecutive efforts in a false claims and mail fraud case.

POINTS TO REMEMBER

Administrative Forfeiture of Real Property.

The enactment of the Comprehensive Crime Control Act of 1984, Pub. L. 98-473, broadened the categories of real property forfeiture to the United States. For example, 21 U.S.C. $\S 881(A)(7)$ provides for the forfeiture of real property that was "used or intended to be used . . . to commit or to facilitate the commission of [a felony under Title 21 of the United States Code]." In addition, the Customs laws that govern most civil forfeiture actions were amended to allow for the administrative forfeiture of property with an appraised value of \$100,000 or less, 19 U.S.C. $\S 1607$.

Administrative forfeitures are by definition uncontested and are conducted solely by the investigative agency, primarily the Drug Enforcement Administration and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. If an interested party seeks to contest the forfeiture, the party must file a property claim and a cost bond with the investigative agency. The matter is then referred to the appropriate United States Attorney for initiation of a judicial forfeiture action.

However, the increase in administrative forfeitures of real property has not been as great as expected. A party with an interest in real property will

generally file a claim and bond thereby obtaining a judicial resolution of the forfeiture.

Additionally, the United States has been unsuccessful in selling for fair market value real property forfeited administratively. The United States Marshals Service, the agency charged with the disposal of the majority of forfeited real property, seeks to sell property in a number of ways, ranging from auction to a sale negotiated by a real estate broker. Regardless of the method of sale used, in most instances the buyer must obtain financing in order to purchase the property. The procurement of Title Insurance by the buyer for the protection of the lending institution is a condition precedent to obtaining the requested financing.

However, Title Insurance companies have refused to issue title insurance on real property forfeited administratively. Department personnel and various Assistant United States Attorneys have contacted numerous title insurance companies throughout the country in an effort to resolve this problem. Notwithstanding attempts to convince the companies of the legality of administrative forfeitures and assurances that the due process right of all known parties-in-interest have not been abridged, the government has been unsuccessful in getting any national title insurance company to agree to issue title insurance on property forfeited to the United States administratively. United States Attorneys' attempts to institute a Quiet Title Action have not always been successful.

To resolve this problem, all real property forfeitures under all laws that allow such forfeitures, including 18 U.S.C. §2254 and 21 U.S.C. §881, shall proceed judicially. It is not anticipated that this policy will result in a significant increase in caseload for any United States Attorney's office.

(Criminal Division)

Allegations Against Elected or Public Officials.

The Public Integrity Section of the Criminal Division is responsible for overseeing the investigation and prosecution of federal crimes involving abuse of the public trust by elected or appointed officials at all levels of government and election crimes. See USAM 9-1.103(G). The Section prosecutes selected cases against federal, state, and local officials, and is available as a source of advice and expertise to law enforcement officials and prosecutors at all levels of government.

The Section is also responsible for reviewing and processing all matters arising under the Special Prosecutor's Act (28 U.S.C. §591 et seq.) and should be notified promptly should an allegation against an individual covered by the Act be received.

As noted in USAM 9-1.103(G)(1), all cases involving alleged criminal violations by federal judges pose obvious conflict of interest problems for United States Attorneys and should be referred to the Section for investigation. Presently, authorization from the Section is required in all election-related cases and in corruption cases brought under the Hobbs Act.

(Executive Office)

Allegations of Misconduct Against Assistant United States Attorneys.

In a March 23, 1987, memorandum, Mr. Laurence S. McWhorter, Acting Director, Executive Office for United States Attorneys reiterated the requirement that United States Attorneys report promptly all allegations of misconduct concerning Assistant United States Attorneys and other Department employees in their offices, including state bar matters, to the Office of Professional Responsibility and the Executive Office pursuant to the provisions of 28 C.F.R. §0.39a and <u>USAM</u> 1-4.200. A copy of the memorandum is appended to this Bulletin.

(Executive Office)

Classified Information Procedures Act (CIPA).

The Internal Security Section is responsible for the coordination of the Classified Information Procedures Act (CIPA), 18 U.S.C. app. (Supp. V 1981), which established certain pretrial, trial and appellate procedures for criminal cases where classified information may be disclosed. Accordingly, the Section is to be consulted in any case with a possibility that classified information will be disclosed in litigation or will play a role in the prosecutive decision.

In criminal cases, the issue often arises as to whether the importance of going forward with the prosecution outweighs the risk of damage to the national security which may result from the public disclosure of classified information. Previously, the government was impeded in making informed resolutions of this issue because of the absence of uniform procedures permitting the government to ascertain before trial what classified information the defense will seek to disclose, and whether the court will find it admissible. In addition, in cases where the government decided to prosecute, resolution of issues relating to classified information was often unnecessarily burdensome. CIPA was designed to address these problems. The procedures, insofar as possible, enable the government to be informed prior to trial of what classified information, if any, and in what form, will have to be disclosed during the trial.

The Chief Justice, pursuant to Section 9(a) of the Act, promulgated security procedures for handling classified information in the custody of federal courts, which became effective on March 30, 1981. The Department of Justice, pursuant to Section 12(a) of the Act, promulgated guidelines for determination of the propriety of initiating or declining prosecution of cases which may involve the disclosure of classified information, which became effective on June 10, 1981. The guidelines, as well as the security procedures, appear in the <u>United States Attorneys' Manual</u> (USAM 9-90.941).

In cases involving classified information, two essential aspects of CIPA should be remembered. First, only the Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division, the Deputy Attorney General or the Attorney General, can authorize a declination of a prosecution for national security reasons. Second, those declinations must be included in a report submitted to Congress pursuant to the requirements of the Act.

In cases involving the potential public disclosure of classified information, federal prosecutors must vigorously prosecute lawbreakers while protecting national security interests. Through the proper use of CIPA and other procedural safe-

guards, this sometimes difficult, and always delicate, task can be achieved. Therefore, prosecutors must consult with the Internal Security Section, Criminal Division, in any case with a possibility for disclosure of classified information during litigation or where such information will play a role in prosecutive decision-making. Such consultation will ensure appropriate coordination with other components of the Department and the classifying agency.

Contact Edward J. Walsh, Chief, Graymail Unit, or Juan C. Marrero, Trial Attorney, Graymail Unit, Internal Security Section (FTS 786-4938) to coordinate your efforts in the above matters.

(Criminal Division)

Imposition of Restitution as Probation Condition in the Ninth Circuit Requires Loss be Set Forth in Indictment or Stipulated in Plea Agreement.

The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals held in <u>United States v. Whitney</u>, 785 F.2d 824 (9th Cir. 1986) that a trial court may not order restitution as a condition of probation unless the amount of loss caused by the offense is set forth in the indictment or in a stipulation entered into by the defendant as part of a plea agreement. The Department filed a petition for rehearing <u>en banc</u> on the grounds this holding is in direct conflict with other circuits, the rationale conflicts with earlier decisions of the Ninth Circuit as to the nature of information in the record needed to support an order of restitution, and is inconsistent with general principles of sentencing law regarding disputes as to the accuracy of information relied on by the sentencing judge in imposing sentence.

Karen Skrivseth, Criminal Division, Appellate Staff is handling this matter for the Department.

(Executive Office)

Indictments of Felons in Possession of Firearms.

The charging of prior felonies in felon-in-possession of firearms indictments under 18 U.S.C. $\S922(g)$ and $\S924(e)$

A. Section 922(g).

The Circuit Courts differed as to whether the government might charge more than one prior felony in indictments for violations of 18 U.S.C. §922(h) and 18 U.S.C. app. §1202, the predecessors of 18 U.S.C. §922(g), and whether the nature of the prior felony might be spelled out. The First Circuit summarized the state of the law as follows:

Appellant points out that 18 U.S.C. app. $\S1202(a)(1)$, requires for conviction that the government show that a defendant (1) possessed firearms and (2) had a previous felony conviction. The appellant notes that Count I of the indictment unnecessarily states two previous felony convictions. Appellant claims that, since the government need only have proved one prior conviction to win its case, the recitation of two convictions unfairly prejudiced the jury against him.

The courts of appeals have adopted differing positions on this issue. The Eighth Circuit has consistently ruled that the government may seek to prove more than one prior felony conviction even if the defendant offers to stipulate that he is a convicted felon. United States v. Bruton, 647 F.2d 818, 824-25 (8th Cir. 1981); United States v. Smith, 520 F.2d 544, 548-49 (8th Cir.), cert. denied, 429 U.S. 925 (1976). The Sixth Circuit has adopted a similar position--United States v. Blackburn, 592 F.2d 300, 301 (6th Cir. 1979); United States v. Burkhart, 545 F.2d 14, 15 (6th Cir. 1976).

Alternatively, the Seventh Circuit has held that the government may not seek to establish more than one prior conviction. (The court did not make clear whether the defendant had offered a stipulation.) United States v. Romero, 603 F.2d 640, 641-42 (7th Cir. 1979). The Fifth Circuit also has indicated that the government may not seek to establish more than one conviction-provided the defendant enters into an appropriate stipulation. United States v. Barfield, 527 F.2d 858, 860-62 (5th Cir. 1976); cf. United States v. LaChapelle, 542 F.2d 257, 258 (5th Cir. 1976). And the Fourth Circuit has held that the trial court must strike from an indictment reference to the nature of the previous felony conviction once a defendant stipulates that he has been convicted of the prior crime. United States v. Poore, 594 F.2d 39, 41-43 (4th Cir. 1979).

We need not here resolve the points of difference suggested by those cases, however, for the defendant has refused to stipulate that he was convicted of a prior felony. Although the presence of a stipulation would have gone far towards showing that the recitation of two prior convictions was unnecessary, unfair, and prejudicial, the absence of the stipulations makes the recitations reasonable. See Note, Prior Convictions and the Gun Control Act of 1968, 76 Colum. L. Rev. 326, 343 et seq. (1976). United States v. Timpani, 665 F.2d 1, 6 (1st Cir. 1981) (footnote omitted) (emphasis in original).

Other cases holding the United States need not accept the stipulation are: United States v. O'Shea, 724 F.2d 1514 (11th Cir. 1984); United States v. Flenoid, 718 F.2d 867 (8th Cir. 1983); United States v. Booker, 706 F.2d 860 (8th Cir. 1983) cert. denied, United States v. Jackson, 680 F.2d 561 (8th Cir. 1982); United States v. Williams, 612 F.2d 735, 740 (3rd Cir.), cert. denied, 445 U.S. 934 (1980); and United States v. Kalama, 549 F.2d 594 (9th Cir. 1976), cert. denied, 429 U.S. 1110; but see United States v. Brinklow, 560 F.2d 1003 (10th Cir. 1977), cert. denied, 434 U.S. 1047 (acceptance of stipulation discretionary with judge); and United States v. Torres, 610 F. Supp. 1089 (E.D. N.Y. 1985) (stipulation must be accepted).

Congress, in its recent amendments to the firearms statutes, did not provide a legislative resolution of the dispute. Indictments under $18\ U.S.C.\ \S922(g)$ should, therefore, continue to be framed in accord with circuit precedent, and, where there is none, in the manner most advantageous to the government.

B. Section 924(e)

The courts have also disagreed whether the Armed Career Criminal Act of 1984 amendment to 18 U.S.C. app. §1202 created a new offense or simply provided an enhanced penalty for felons whose prior records consisted of three or more state or federal convictions for robbery or burglary. The Department's position was that the Act was an enhancement statute, so that no more than one conviction had to be

specified in the indictment, with the rest proved to the court at sentencing. See Handbook on the Comprehensive Crime Control Act of 1984, p. 196. The Department also recommended, to avoid due process challenges, that notice of intent to seek the enhanced penalty be given in advance of plea and sentencing. Ibid: Crime Control Act Bulletin, No. 6 (July 1985), p. 8.

The government's position was rejected in <u>United States v. Davis</u>, 801 F.2d 754 (5th Cir. 1986), but thereafter accepted in <u>United States v. Gregg</u>, 803 F.2d 568 (10th Cir. 1986); <u>United States v. Davis</u>, No. 86-1103 (8th Cir. Dec. 18, 1986), vacated pending hearing <u>en banc in United States v. Montgomery</u>; and <u>United States v. Hawkins</u>, 811 F.2d 210 (3rd Cir. 1987).

Section 924(e), the current reenactment of the Armed Career Criminal Act, is almost certainly to be interpreted by the courts as an enhancement statute inasmuch as the new format substantially meets the tests set by the Fifth Circuit in the Davis case.

In sum, more than one conviction need not be alleged in the indictment or proved to the jury in order to entitle the government to seek the enhanced penalty under 18 U.S.C. $\S924(e)$ at the time of sentencing. Notice of intent to seek the enhanced penalty should, however, be given. More than one prior conviction may, however, be alleged in the indictment and proved to the jury in those circuits that permit the practice under 18 U.S.C. $\S922(g)$.

(Criminal Division)

Need for Stricter Compliance with Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 32(C)(3)(D) At Sentencing.

Five different courts of appeals have ordered remands in cases where a sentencing judge failed to comply with the procedural rule that requires placement in the record of the judge's resolution of any challenges made by defendants to the accuracy of information contained in a presentence report.

Although the onus is upon the judge, the effect of the omission is a remand that might cause needless expenditures of time and resources on the government's part. The adverse appellate rulings can be avoided if prosecutors are alerted to the requirements of the procedural rule and remind the sentencing judge of its requirements when it appears that the judge is not complying with the rule.

(Criminal Division)

Personnel.

Effective April 14, 1987, Charlotte Lane was sworn in as the court-appointed United States Attorney for the Southern District of West Virginia.

The Freedom of Information/Privacy Act Unit has moved to Room 6320 in the Patrick Henry Building. FOIA Unit personnel can be reached on FTS 272-9826.

(Executive Office)

Seized Cash.

The security, budgetary, and accounting problems caused by retention of large amounts of cash is causing great concern within the Department and the Congress. A recent GAO Report estimated that \$220 million in cash is retained by various federal law enforcement agencies. Consequently, effective May 1, 1987, all currency seized, subject to criminal or civil forfeiture, is to be delivered to the United States Marshals Service (USMS) for deposit in the USMS Seized Asset Deposit Fund either within sixty days after seizure or ten days after indictment, whichever occurs first. (This policy does not apply to the recovery of buy money advanced from appropriated funds. To the extent practical, negotiable instruments and foreign currency should be converted and deposited.) Where appropriate, photographs or videotapes of the seized cash should be taken for later use in court as evidence.

Limited exceptions to this directive, including extensions of applicable time limits, will be granted, on an interim basis, only with the express written permission of the Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division, and are to be sought through the Division's Asset Forfeiture Office. (Requests for exemption will be filed by the United States Attorney's office or Criminal Division Section responsible for prosecuting, or reviewing for prosecution, a particular case.) Retention of currency will be permitted when retention of that currency, or a portion thereof, serves a significant independent, tangible, evidentiary purpose due to, for example, the presence of fingerprints, packaging in an incriminating fashion, or the existence of a traceable amount of narcotic residue on the bills. If the amount of a seizure is less than \$5000, an exception may be granted at a supervisory level within the United States Attorneys' office using the above criteria. (The criteria and procedure for obtaining exemptions remains the same for cases retained by the United States Customs Service.)

The co-mingling of cash seized by the government under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(6), will not deprive the court of jurisdiction over the res. Unlike other assets seized by the government (e.g., real property, conveyances), cash is a fungible item. See, United States v. \$57,480.05 United States Currency and Other Coins and \$10,575 United States Currency, 722 F.2d 1459 (9th Cir. 1984), and American Bank of Wage Claims v. Registry of the District Court of Guam, 431 F.2d 1215 (9th Cir. 1970).

Each United States Attorney's office should review existing cases and property storage sites and make all required transfers or requests for exemption.

For further information or questions regarding implementation of this policy, contact Brad Cates, Director, Asset Forfeiture Office, Criminal Division, at FTS 272-6420.

(Criminal Division)

CASENOTES

OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR GENERAL

The Solicitor General has authorized the filing of:

A petition for a writ of certiorari in <u>Department of the Navy v. Egan</u>, 802 F.2d 1563 (Fed. Cir. 1986). The issue is whether, in the course of reviewing the removal of an employee for failure to maintain a required security clearance, the Merit Systems Protection Board is authorized by statute to review the substance of the underlying decision to deny or revoke the security clearance.

A petition for a writ of certiorari in <u>United States v. Fuccillo</u>, 808 F.2d 173 (1st Cir. 1987). The question is whether evidence seized in reasonable reliance upon a search warrant should be admissible under <u>United States v. Leon</u>, 468 U.S. 897 (1984), where the warrant is subsequently found to be insufficiently particularized.

A petition for certiorari in Brock v. Richland Shoe Co., 799 F.2d 80 (3d Cir. 1986). The issue is whether a violation of the FLSA is "willful" under 29 U.S.C. $\S255(a)$ only if the employer knew it was violating the Act or acted with reckless disregard for the Act's requirements.

A petition for a writ of certiorari in <u>Bowen v. Polaski</u>, 804 F.2d 456 (8th Cir. 1986). The question presented is whether respondents should have exhausted their administrative remedies before seeking class action relief in federal district court.

Petitions for certiorari in <u>INS v. Pangilinan</u>, 796 F.2d 1091 (9th Cir. 1987), and <u>INS v. Manzano</u>, No. 84-6031 (9th Cir. 1987). The question presented is whether respondents, Filipino veterans of World War II, are entitled to naturalization under a statute that expired over 40 years ago.

A petition for a writ of certiorari in <u>EEOC v. Commercial Office Products Co.</u>, 803 F.2d 581 (10th Cir. 1986). The question is whether a state agency's decision not to initially process a discrimination charge constitutes a "termination" of state proceedings within the meaning of Section 706(c) of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

A brief amicus curiae in <u>Vermont v. Cox</u>, 519 A.2d 1144 (1986). The question presented is whether respondent's priviledge against self-incrimination was violated when he participated in a presentence interview after the probation officer told him that she would not return if he chose to wait to consult a representative of the public defender's office.

A brief amicus curiae in <u>Taylor v. Illinois</u>, 491 N.E.2d 3 (1986). The issue is whether the Sixth Amendment <u>Compulsory Process</u> Clause forbids a trial court from excluding testimony of a defense witness as a sanction for defense counsel's violation of a statutory discovery requirement.

OFFICE OF LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS

SELECTED CONGRESSIONAL AND LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES

ADMINISTRATION INITIATIVES

The Sex-Spy Scandal and the Death Penalty. Outrage over recent disclosures of shocking breaches of security at United States diplomatic facilities in the Soviet Union has prompted calls by some Members of Congress for reinstitution of capital punishment for espionage. The Department has long sought to restore the death penalty for certain federal cases of murder, espionage and treason and has received clearance from the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) to resubmit the Department's omnibus capital punishment bill to the Congress.

Anti-Obscenity Legislation. The Department is nearing the completion of development of an omnibus anti-pornography bill to implement the recommendations of the Attorney General's Commission on Pornography. The draft bill will be submitted to OMB for final Administration clearance prior to submission to the Congress.

CONGRESSIONAL INITIATIVES

Parental and Temporary Medical Leave Act. The Senate Labor and Human Resources Committee, Subcommittee on Children, Family, Drugs and Alcoholism, held a hearing on April 23, 1987, concerning the proposed Parental and Temporary Medical Leave Act, S. 249. The Department had previously written Subcommittee Chairman Dodd expressing our desire to testify on S. 249. (During the 99th Congress, the Administration opposed similar legislation on federalism and free market grounds.)

The Department was not invited to testify on April 23, but will be invited to send a witness to a second hearing on S. 249 to be held in September.

Assistant Attorney General William Bradford Reynolds appeared Fair Housing. before the Senate Committee on the Judiciary, Subcommittee on Constitution on April 7 concerning S. 558, Fair Housing. Chairman Simon was pleased that there appeared to be substantial common ground concerning the goals of possible legislation in this area. Two issues emerged as the chief differences between Committee Democrats and the Administration: 1) Administrative Law Judges (S. 558) vs. arbitration (Administration position); and 2) whether or not to prohibit discrimination on the basis of family status. Mr. Reynolds cited statistics on the time required to adjudicate cases under ALJ systems in other areas, to support the Administration's position that such a system would likely fail to accomplish the shared goal of a speedier process. Most of the Subcommittee members present were uncomfortable with an arbitration process, which they felt to be without precedent. Mr. Reynolds expressed confidence that the Administration's alternative bill would be forthcoming.

Military Medical Malpractice. On April 9, 1987, the House Judiciary Subcommittee on Administrative Law and Procedure approved H.R. 1054, a bill to permit service members to sue the United States for medical malpractice under the Federal Tort Claims Act. Such suits, which would thoroughly disrupt military discipline and operations, are entirely unnecessary insofar as existing military

systems provide compensation that civilians can obtain only through tort suit. The Department will continue to oppose this bill by coordinating efforts with the Department of Defense, and contacts with full Committee members and their staffs.

Atomic Weapons Testing Veterans. On April 9, 1987, the House Judiciary Subcommittee on Administrative Law and Procedure unanimously passed H.R. 1341, a bill to allow persons suffering radiation injuries allegedly resulting from the government's atomic weapons testing program to sue the United States under an unprecedented statutory scheme unrelated to the Federal Tort Claims Act. The bill is wholly unjustified because there is no credible evidence that the radiation proximately caused cancers that are disproportionate in number to the general population. The Department is preparing a letter to the full Committee and plan several briefings to apprise key members of our vigorous opposition to the bill and the tremendous expense that would result from its enactment.

Insider Information. On April 22, the Senate Banking Committee, chaired by Senator Proxmire (D. Wis.), conducted a hearing on the improper use of insider information in securities trading.

Committee members Heinz, D'Amato, Reigle, Shelby, Sanford, Hecht, Garn, Dixon, Graham, Bond, Sasser, and Dodd were present. Each read a brief statement into the record condemning "insider trading" and vowing to introduce whatever legislation it would take to stop such practices. Senator Hecht was the only voice reflecting the fact that current regulations seemed to be working and caution should be considered before tampering with a system that has been working fine for the last fifty years. Senator D'Amato expressed the feeling that firms should be held accountable for the illegal actions of their employees.

United States Attorney Rudolph Giuliani, Southern District of New York, and Gary Lynch, Director, Division of Enforcement, Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), were the only witnesses invited to testify. United States Attorney Giuliani described the scope of the "insider trading" problem in New York and offered the following suggestions to the Committee for consideration: (1) increase SEC and other prosecutorial enforcement in the "insider trading" area; (2) clarify and define the term "insider trading"; (3) increase sentences for offenses and for obstruction of justice and perjury; (4) stress that reform should come from within the system together with increased monitoring of compliance to be undertaken by the various firms themselves; and (5) stress ethical values in our education system, especially in our business and law schools.

Repeal of McCarran-Ferguson. On April 23, the House Judiciary Committee's Monopoly Subcommittee held hearings on the repeal of the McCarran-Ferguson Act's grant of immunity from the antitrust laws to the business of insurance. Acting Assistant Attorney General for Antitrust Charles Rule testified for the Department in a panel with FTC Chairman Oliver; they were followed by representatives of the National Associations of Attorneys General and State Legislatures, who endorsed repeal of the immunity as part of their general program, and by industry representatives, who opposed repeal. As in their joint appearance before the Senate Judiciary Committee's Antitrust Subcommittee in February, Mr. Rule and Chairman Oliver differed in emphasis on the merits of the proposal. Speaking for himself only, the Chairman gave a sweeping and unqualified endorsement of application of all antitrust laws to the insurance industry (including the FTC Act)--based on principle rather than on the facts of the case, because the FTC is statutorily barred from studying the industry.

Mr. Rule stated that repeal would do nothing to ameliorate the insurance availability crisis, that the insurance industry gave every indication of being competitive despite present immunity, and that repeal of the immunity after 40 years in force would involve uncertainty and litigation expenses, and would quite possibly lead to more regressive, anti-competitive state regulations (a possibility highlighted by testimony offered by the state government representatives). He also emphasized the Department's firm opposition to any legislation giving either the appearance or reality of extending federal regulation to the insurance industry, although the Department would be willing to endorse any legislation limited to repealing the antitrust exemption only. Mr. Rule stated the Department's principle basis for supporting this limited reform was to remove a red herring from the debate over the causes of the insurance availability crisis.

CIVIL DIVISION

SUPREME COURT VACATES NINTH CIRCUIT DECISION HOLDING THAT THE WARRANTLESS SEARCH OF A GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEE'S OFFICE BY HIS GOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYER VIOLATED THE FOURTH AMENDMENT AND REMANDS FOR DETERMINATION WHETHER THE SEARCH WAS REASONABLE.

State hospital officials became concerned about possible improprieties in plaintiff's management of a residency program and placed him on administrative leave pending investigation. While plaintiff, a physician and psychiatrist, was on leave, hospital officials searched his office and seized materials from his desk and files which were subsequently used in administrative proceedings against him. Plaintiff filed an action under 42 U.S.C. §1983, seeking damages from the officials involved.

The Supreme Court reversed the Ninth Circuit's holding that the search violated the Fourth Amendment and, holding that the record was inadequate, remanded the case for a determination whether the search was reasonable. The Court rejected the government's argument that government employees never have a legitimate expectation of privacy in the workplace. Justice O'Connor, joined by the Chief Justice, Justice White, and Justice Powell, indicated instead that government employees may have a legitimate expectation of privacy in their workplaces, but that particular circumstances may make some expectations unreasonable. plurality indicated that plaintiff here had a legitimate expectation of privacy in his desk and file cabinets. Justice Scalia, concurring in the judgment, joined by the dissenters, indicated that government employees' offices, desks, and files are generally covered by Fourth Amendment protections. The plurality and Justice Scalia agreed that the record was inadequate to determine whether the warrantless search here was reasonable, and remanded the case for consideration of that question. In a footnote, the plurality opinion states that it does not address the proper Fourth Amendment analysis for drug and alcohol testing of employees.

 $\frac{0\,\text{'Connor}\ v.\ \text{Ortega},}{145\text{-}0\text{-}1844.}$ U.S. No. 85-530 (Mar. 31, 1987). D. J. # Schnitker (FTS 633-3180), Civil Division.

FOURTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT FEDERAL OFFICIALS' ABSOLUTE IMMUNITY FROM COMMON LAW TORT SUITS IS NOT RESTRICTED TO DISCRETIONARY CONDUCT.

General Electric (G.E.) settled claims brought by two NIH electricians arising out of the explosion of a transformer located at NIH which was designed and manufactured by G.E. They then sued the United States for contribution and indemnity, as well as several employees of NIH--supervisors of the injured electricians, in their individual capacities. The district court dismissed the claims against the United States and the individuals.

On appeal, the Fourth Circuit affirmed, holding that the United States was immune from suit since it had provided workers' compensation to its employees. The court found the United States immune here because under Maryland law, a private party in the State providing workers' compensation insurance for its employees, as the United States does, would be held immune from such a third party suit arising out of a work-related accident.

The court rejected G.E.'s contention that absolute immunity was reserved to those employees who exercised discretionary as opposed to ministerial duties. The court found that where the challenged action was within the outer perimeter of the official's line of duty, immunity is triggered. The Fourth Circuit has now clearly joined those courts of appeals which reject the discretionary component to absolute immunity. This issue is pending before the Supreme Court in Westfall v. Erwin (cert. granted Mar. 2, 1987).

General Electric Co. v. United States, F.2d, No. 86-2041 (4th Cir. Mar. 12, 1987). D. J. # 157-35-1158. Attorneys: Barbara L. Herwig (FTS 633-5425), John F. Cordes (FTS 633-3380), and Carlene McIntyre, Civil Division.

FIFTH CIRCUIT HOLDS GOVERNMENT IS NOT LIABLE TO CHILD INJURED BY EXPLOSIVE DEVICE STOLEN FROM A MILITARY BASE.

The Fifth Circuit held that a soldier's unforeseeable theft of a small explosive device is a supervening act that breaks the chain of proximate cause between the government's negligence in handling the explosive and injuries suffered by a child who subsequently acquired it. The explosives were used during an Air Force training exercise conducted on a remote, limited access military reservation. At the end of the exercise, a number of unexploded devices were left lying on the open ground. A soldier found several of the explosives in the course of his duties, hid one in his coat, and smuggled it back to his off-base apartment. A child ultimately found the explosive in the soldier's apartment and was injured when he caused it to detonate. The court found that the government had been negligent in maintaining control over use and distribution of the explosives. It also found, however, that the soldier's removal of the explosive device was an unforeseeable criminal act and a supervening cause of the child's injuries under Texas substantive law. It, therefore, reversed the lower court's judgment holding the government liable in negligence.

Garza v. United States, F.2d , No. 85-1698 (5th Cir. Feb. 17, 1987), \overline{D} . J. # $\overline{157-73-703}$. Attorneys: Robert S. Greenspan (FTS 633-5428) and Jeffrey Clair (FTS 633-4027), Civil Division.

NINTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS DISTRICT COURT DISMISSAL OF TORT CLAIM, BASED ON FTCA'S EXCLUSION OF ACTIONS FOR MISREPRESENTATION.

Plaintiffs, a group of farmers in Washington's Yakima Valley who receive irrigation water from the Bureau of Reclamation, brought this action for "hydrological malpractice" after a faulty forecast of water availability led them to cut back on planting and to take other ultimately detrimental steps. (The Bureau forecast an extreme shortage, which did not in fact take place.) The district court granted summary judgment, alternatively holding that the farmers' claim was barred as a claim "arising out of . . . misrepresentation," or because it was based upon performance of a "discretionary function."

The court of appeals affirmed, on the basis of the misrepresentation exception. The court recognized that plaintiffs' claim "fits squarely into the tort of misrepresentation," and, under controlling Supreme Court and Ninth Circuit rulings, cannot be maintained under the FTCA. The court stressed that the agency's "role here was solely in generating and disseminating information," and rejected plaintiffs' argument that "operational" negligence in developing the figures defeats application of the misrepresentation exception. Judge Pregerson concurred, acknowledging that precedent required this result, which he considered "unjust."

Schinmann v. United States, F.2d , No. 85-4253 (9th Cir. Feb. 18, 1987). D. J. # 157-81-340. Attorneys: Robert S. Greenspan (FTS 633-5428) and John F. Daly (FTS 633-3688), Civil Division.

NINTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT JUDGMENT AGAINST THE GOVERNMENT UNDER FTCA PRECLUDES A <u>BIVENS</u> ACTION ON THE SAME FACTS AGAINST A GOVERNMENT <u>EMPLOYEE</u>.

Plaintiff in this Bivens action had also sued the United States under the FTCA for the INS officer's false imprisonment and intentional infliction of emotional distress. The district court entered judgment against the United States in the amount of \$1,000 in compensatory damages, and against the INS officer in the amount of \$1,500 in compensatory (\$1,000) and punitive (\$500) damages. The district court relied upon Carlson v. Greene, 446 U.S. 14 (1980), to hold that Bivens suits were complementary to FTCA actions and that plaintiff could pursue and win judgments in both.

The Ninth Circuit reversed, following the Sixth Circuit's decision in Serra v. Pichardo, 786 F.2d 237, cert. denied, 107 S.Ct. 103 (1986). Both courts held that Section 2676 of the FTCA, 28 U.S.C. §2676, precludes more than identical claims; rather, it bars all suits against the individual where a judgment has been entered against the government "by reason of the same subject matter." Both cases also distinguished Carlson as permitting a plaintiff only to pursue claims against both the government and the employee, not to obtain judgments against both.

Arevalo v. Woods, F.2d , No. 85-4320, (9th Cir. Feb. 24, 1987). D. J. # 39-61-128. Attorneys: Barbara L. Herwig (FTS 633-5425) and Scott D. Earnshaw (FTS 633-3427), Civil Division.

TENTH CIRCUIT AFFIRMS ORDER GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF THE POSTAL SERVICE IN A TITLE VII CASE.

A black postal worker filed an EEO complaint claiming that he had been the victim of racial discrimination when he was not selected for a promotion. After investigation and attempted conciliation, the Postal Service entered into a settlement agreement with the black worker awarding him a promotion to a vacant position in exchange for his dropping his Title VII suit against the Postal Service. Plaintiff, a white postal employee, then brought a Title VII suit against the Postal Service, claiming that he should have gotten the vacant position that was given the black employee pursuant to the settlement agreement and that the awarding of the position to the black violated Title VII. The district court granted summary judgment in favor of the Postal Service.

The Tenth Circuit affirmed. It held that the settlement agreement could not be considered an act of discrimination if it was a bona fide attempt to conciliate a claim and not an attempt to bestow unequal employment benefits under the guise of remedying discrimination. The court found no evidence of bad faith in the settlement agreement. It noted that the white employee was not excluded from the position he desired on the basis of his race. The settlement agreement excluded all persons of whatever race from the position, except for the employee whose grievance was being settled. Thus, the settlement of the black employee's claim was race neutral and did not violate Title VII.

Carey v. United States Postal Service, F.2d, No. 85-2520 (10th Cir. Feb. 23, 1987). D. J. # 35-29-50. Attorneys: Robert S. Greenspan (FTS 633-5428) and John C. Hoyle, (FTS 633-3527), Civil Division.

TENTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT JUDGMENT AGAINST A GOVERNMENT AGENCY CAN BE USED TO COLLATERALLY ESTOP AN INDIVIDUAL DEFENDANT IN SUBSEQUENT BIVENS ACTION FROM RELITIGATING CONSTITUTIONALITY OF ACTION AT ISSUE IN BOTH SUITS.

Plaintiff was a member of a class of plaintiffs who obtained declaratory relief against certain Immigration and Naturalization Service (INS) activities. Defendant Hall, an INS investigator, had been a witness for the government in the injunctive suit. Plaintiff brought suit against Hall seeking damages for violation of Fourth Amendment rights in a "no-knock" search of plaintiff's home. The district court held that the finding in the action against INS that the search was unconstitutional could be used collaterally to prevent Hall from relitigating the question in this separate Bivens action, and a jury ultimately awarded plaintiff \$10,000.

The Tenth Circuit affirmed, rejecting the government's argument that the finding of unconstitutionality against the INS in the declaratory action should not be used offensively to collaterally estop Hall from relitigating the question. The government argued that Hall was not a defendant in the declaratory action and could not properly be considered to be in privity with the INS, because his interests were not adequately represented by the INS in the prior action. It held that the government had just as much incentive as Hall to litigate the constitutional issue fully and vigorously, that Hall was aware of and participated as a witness in the litigation against INS, and that the district court's finding of privity was not clearly erroneous.

Azadmanesh v. Hall F.2d , No. 85-1362, (10th Cir. Feb. 26, 1987). D. J. # 39-13-99. Attorneys: Barbara L. Herwig (FTS 633-5425) and Edward R. Cohen (FTS 633-5089), Civil Division.

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION

NINTH CIRCUIT'S PRESUMPTION OF IRREPARABLE HARM IN ENVIRONMENTAL CASES INVALIDATED. ALASKA NATIONAL INTEREST LANDS CONSERVATION ACT DOES NOT APPLY TO OUTER CONTINENTAL SHELF

The Ninth Circuit directed that a preliminary injunction issue against exploration activities in two lease sale areas offshore Alaska, despite the district court's findings that an injunction was not necessary to prevent irreparable harm, because plaintiffs had shown a strong likelihood of success on their claims that the Secretary of the Interior had violated Section 810 of the Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act (ANILCA). The Supreme Court reversed on two independent grounds: 1) It held that the court of appeals' direction of a preliminary injunction was contrary to Weinberger v. Romero-Barcelo, since it was based on a "presumption" of irreparable harm, rather than a traditional balancing of competing claims of injury. The Court found critical that the underlying policy of Section 810, the protection of subsistence uses, would not have been undermined by further exploration. 2) It also held that Section 810 does not apply to the outer continental shelf (OCS), because that provision only applies to "land situated in Alaska." The Court found that "in Alaska" has a precise geographic/political meaning, and cannot be construed to include the OCS outside the boundaries of the State. There being no ambiguity, the canon of construction which favors Indians in cases of ambiguous language was simply irrelevant.

The court also vacated and remanded for further proceedings a portion of the court of appeals' opinion which held that the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act extinguished aboriginal title claims on the OCS, on the theory that the OCS was "in Alaska."

Amoco Production Company v. Village of Gambell, U.S., No. 85-1239, (Mar. 24, 1987). D. J. # 90-4-180. Attorneys: F. Henry Habicht II, Assistant Attorney General (FTS 633-2701), David C. Shilton (FTS 633-5580), and Jacques B. Gelin (FTS 633-2762), Land and Natural Resources Division.

FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

Rule 41(c)(2). Search and Seizure. Issuance and Contents. Warrant Upon Oral Testimony.

Defendant, convicted of possession of cocaine with intent to distribute, alleged on appeal that items seized from his home pursuant to a telephonic warrant should have been suppressed because the search violated various provisions of Rule 41(c)(2). The warrant was issued by a magistrate after phone conversations with a FBI agent. The magistrate, who did not have a copy of the rule before him, deviated from its terms in several ways; for example, he did not record preliminary conversations with the affiant, did not require the affiant to read the warrant

affidavit verbatim, and failed to enter the affiant's statement immediately on a warrant form and sign it. Defendant argues that cumulatively, these procedural errors violated his Fourth Amendment rights.

The Tenth Circuit held that the magistrate's efforts to issue a warrant over the telephone were marred by the violations of the governing Rule 41 (c)(2), but that suppression of the fruits of the warrant was not required in this instance. The court held that none of the magistrate's mistakes evidenced a departure from his neutral and detached role or suggested a lack of good faith either on his part or that of the affiant. The magistrate tried to assure proper execution of the search, which otherwise might well have been conducted without a warrant on a theory of exigency, and he met the standard articulated in the U.S. Supreme Court's decision on the "good faith" exception to the exclusionary rule, United States v. Leon, 468 U.S. 897, 35 CrL 3273 (1984). The court did not deem the deviations from the rule serious enough in themselves to require suppression.

(Affirmed.) United States v. Rome, 809 F.2d 665 (10th Cir. Jan. 15, 1987).



U.S. Department of Justice

Executive Office for United States Attorneys

Office of the Director

Washington, D.C. 20530

WR 23 15

MEMORANDUM TO: All United States Attorneys

(including Overseas)

FROM: Laurence S. McWhorter

Acting Director

Executive Office for United States Attorneys

SUBJECT: Allegations of Misconduct Against Assistant

United States Attorneys

* * * DOES NOT AFFECT TITLE 10 * * *

United States Attorneys should be mindful of the requirement to report all allegations of misconduct concerning Assistant United States Attorneys and other Department employees in their offices to the Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) pursuant to the provisions of 28 C.F.R. §0.39a and USAM 1-4.200 (2/84). requirement extends to all complaints of misconduct, regardless of whether they appear to be without merit, are the subject of a state bar proceeding, or are part of an opinion or order issued by a judicial forum. In addition, reports should be made regarding allegations of misconduct against federal employees who are not employed in your offices where such allegations are brought to your attention. The requirement would encompass allegations regarding, for example, special agent investigators, Border Patrol agents, etc. Attached is a copy of the memorandum dated February 18, 1987, by Deputy Attorney General Arnold I. Burns, which provides greater detail regarding the functions of OPR.

In order to report allegations of misconduct, please send a written report to Mr. Michael E. Shaheen, Jr., Counsel, OPR, which sets out the source of the allegation, name and position of the federal employee involved, and a summary of the circumstances surrounding the incident. A copy of the report should be forwarded at the same time to the Executive Office, with an appropriate notation that the allegation has been reported to OPR.

OPR and the Executive Office must have timely notification of all allegations so that there is time for appropriate action to be taken. If you have any questions regarding this policy, do not hesitate to contact the Office of Professional Responsibility directly (FTS 633-3365).



U.S. Department of Justice Office of the Deputy Attorney General

The Deputy Attorney General

Washington, D.C. 20530

February 18, 1987

MEMORANDUM TO:

Heads of All Department Components and All United States Attorneys

FROM:

Arnold I. Burns
Deputy Attorney General

SUBJECT:

Notification of Misconduct by Employees of the Department of Justice

The Department's Office of Professional Responsibility is responsible for overseeing investigations of allegations of criminal or ethical misconduct by all employees of the Department of Justice. As head of that Office, the Counsel's function is to ensure that Departmental employees continue to perform their duties in accordance with the high professional standards expected of the Nation's principal law enforcement agency. For that Office to perform its function properly, it must be promptly notified whenever allegations of misconduct against any employee of the Department are received.

It has come to my attention that such prompt notification has not been made in all instances and that confusion may exist as to the responsibilities of the heads of Department Components and the United States Attorneys in this regard. All allegations against Departmental employees, legal and nonlegal, involving violations of law, Departmental regulations, or Departmental standards of conduct, must immediately be brought to the attention of the Office of Professional Responsibility. That Office will then, at the Counsel's discretion, either monitor the conduct of the investigation into those allegations, or, in appropriate situations, participate in or direct those investigations. Internal inspections units of the Department should continue to submit monthly reports to the Counsel detailing the status and results of their current investigations.

You are also reminded that Department employees have the option of reporting allegations of misconduct directly to the Office of Professional Responsibility, as opposed to their own internal inspection unit (or where there is no specific unit, any individual discharging comparable duties).

Please arrange for the distribution of a copy of this memorandum to each employee under your supervision. In addition, you should, at least semi-annually, remind your employees of the purpose and function of the Office of Professional Responsibility and of the reporting obligations set forth above.

CUMULATIVE LIST OF CHANGING FEDERAL CIVIL POSTJUDGMENT INTEREST RATES

(As provided for in the amendment to the Federal Postjudgment Interest Statute, 28 U.S.C. §1961, effective October 1, 1982.)

Effective Date	Annual Rate	Effective Date	Annual Rate
12-20-85	7.57%	04-10-87	6.30%
01-17-86	7.85%		
02-14-86	7.71%		
03-14-86	7.06%		
04-11-86	6.31%		
05-14-86	6.56%		
06-06-86	7.03%		
07-09-86	6.35%		
08-01-86	6.18%		
08-29-86	5.63%		
09-26-86	5.79%		
10-24-86	5.75%		
11-21-86	5.77%		
12-24-86	5.93%		
01-16-87	5.75%		
02-13-87	6.09%		
03-13-87	6.04%		

NOTE: When computing interest at the daily rate, round (5/4) the product $(\underline{i.e.},$ the amount of interest computed) to the nearest whole cent.

For cumulative list of those federal civil postjudgment interest rates effective October 1, 1982, through December 19, 1985, see <u>United States Attorneys' Bulletin</u>, Vol. 34, No. 1, Page 25, January 17, 1986.

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS TELETYPES TO ALL UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

- 03-17-87 From: D. Glen Stafford, Acting Personnel Officer, by Barbara Pursley, re: "Thrift Savings Plan for Federal Employees."
- 03-17-87 From: Ronald J. Vincoli, Assistant Director, Security and Personnel Staff, re: "Security and Personnel Staff Telephone Numbers."
- 03-25-87 From: Annette Perkins, Personnel Officer, re: Thrift Savings Plan for Federal Employees."
- 04-01-87 From: Laurence S. McWhorter, Acting Director, by Jason P. Green, Legal Counsel (EOUSA), re: "Allegations Against Elected or Public Officials."
- 04-02-87 From: Laurence S. McWhorter, Acting Director, by Richard L. DeHaan, Associate Director for Administrative Services, re: "Assaults on United States Attorneys and Assistant United States Attorneys."
- 04-16-87 From: Laurence S. McWhorter, Acting Director, re: "United States Attorney Position, Southern District of West Virginia."

UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS' LIST

	•
DISTRICT	U.S. ATTORNEY
Alabama, N	Frank W. Donaldson
	John C. Bell
Alabama, M	
Alabama, S	J. B. Sessions, III
Alaska	Michael R. Spaan
Arizona	Stephen M. McNamee
Arkansas, E	George W. Proctor
Arkansas, W	J. Michael Fitzhugh
California, N	Joseph P. Russoniello
California, E	David F. Levi
California, C	Robert C. Bonner
California, S	Peter K. Nunez
Colorado	Robert N. Miller
Connecticut	Stanley A. Twardy, Jr.
Delaware	William C. Carpenter, Jr.
District of Columbia	Joseph E. diGenova
Florida, N	K. Michael Moore
Florida, M	Robert W. Merkle
Florida, S	Leon B. Kellner
Georgia, N	Robert L. Barr, Jr.
Georgia, M	Samuel A. Wilson
Georgia, S	Hinton R. Pierce
Guam	K. William O'Connor
Hawaii	Daniel A. Bent
Idaho	Maurice O. Ellsworth
Illinois, N	Anton R. Valukas
Illinois, S	Frederick J. Hess
Illinois, C	J. William Roberts
Indiana, N	James G. Richmond
Indiana, S	John D. Tinder
Iowa, N	Charles W. Larson
Iowa, S	Christopher D. Hagen
Kansas	Benjamin L. Burgess, Jr.
Kentucky, E	Louis G. DeFalaise
Kentucky, W	Joseph M. Whittle
Louisiana. E	John Volz
Louisiana, M	P. Raymond Lamonica
Louisiana, W	Joseph S. Cage, Jr.
Maine	Richard S. Cohen
Maryland	Breckinridge L. Willcox
Massachusetts	Frank L. McNamara
	Roy C. Hayes
Michigan, E	•
Michigan, W	John A. Smietanka
Minnesota Mississiania N	Jerome G. Arnold
Mississippi, N	Robert Q. Whitwell
Mississippi, S	George L. Phillips
Missouri, E	Thomas E. Dittmeier
Missouri, W	Robert G. Ulrich

UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

DISTRICT	U.S. ATTORNEY
Montana	Byron H. Dunbar
Nebraska	Ronald D. Lahners
Nevada	William A. Maddox
New Hampshire	Richard V. Wiebusch
New Jersey	Samuel A. Alito, Jr.
New Mexico	William L. Lutz
New York, N	Frederick J. Scullin, Jr.
New York, S	Rudolph W. Giuliani
New York, E	Andrew J. Maloney
New York, W	Roger P. Williams
North Carolina, E	Samuel T. Currin
North Carolina, M	Robert H. Edmunds, Jr.
North Carolina, W	Charles R. Brewer
North Dakota	Rodney S. Webb
Ohio, N	Patrick M. McLaughlin
Ohio, S	D. Michael Crites
Oklahoma, N	Layn R. Phillips
Oklahoma, E	Roger Hilfiger
Oklahoma, W	William S. Price
Oregon	Charles H. Turner
Pennsylvania, E	Edward S. G. Dennis, Jr.
Pennsylvania, M	James J. West
Pennsylvania, W	J. Alan Johnson
Puerto Rico	Daniel F. Lopez-Romo
Rhode Island	Lincoln C. Almond
South Carolina	Vinton DeVane Lide
South Dakota	Philip N. Hogen
Tennessee, E	John W. Gill, Jr.
•	Joe B. Brown
Tennessee, M	
Tennessee, W	W. Hickman Ewing, Jr.
Texas, N	Marvin Collins
Texas, S	Henry K. Oncken
Texas, E	Robert J. Wortham
Texas, W	Helen M. Eversberg
Utah	Brent D. Ward
Vermont	George J. Terwilliger III
Virgin Islands	James W. Diehm
Virginia, E	Henry E. Hudson
Virginia, W	John P. Alderman
Washington, E	John E. Lamp
Washington, W	Gene S. Anderson
West Virginia, N	William A. Kolibash
West Virginia, S	Charlotte Lane
Wisconsin. E	Joseph P. Stadtmueller
Wisconsin, W	John R. Byrnes
Wyoming	Richard A. Stacy
North Mariana Islands	K. William O'Connor
HOLLIT THE THE TSTANGS	K. WITTIAM O COMMO